Al i

10.

Adjourn

AGENDA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE
TUESDAY, AUGUST 19th, 2025
PATTERSON HALL - 1000 MAIN
REGULAR MEETING
5:30 p.m.
Join by Zoom
Meeting ID: 818 5670 3226
Passcode: 423986
By phone: 1719 359 4580

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Recognition of Visitors

Consent Agenda

Note: Allitems listed under the Consent Agenda are routine and are approved with one motion. There will be a
separate discussion of these items if a Board Member or citizen requests. The item may be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered separately at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

B. TREASURER’S REPORT
C. APPROVAL OF BILLS
Old Business

a. Consideration of a request to approve a modification of premises at the Alta Convenience Store.

New Business

a. Tourism Board report.

b. Consideration of a request to approve Resolution 2-2025, to amend the Town Policy Handbook to add a
distracted driver clause.

¢. Consideration of a request to change the Town’s internet service to Starlink.

d. Consideration of a request for the Town to enforce its municipal lighting code §10-4-3.

Additions to the Agenda

Staff & Committee Reports

public Comment — Westcliffe citizens or business owners can comment on agenda items only and are limited to
three (3) minutes. A request can be made to be placed on a future month’s agenda if they want to address the
Board of Trustees on issues related to the Town of Westcliffe.



BOARD OF TRUSTEES

TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2025

REGULAR MEETING
-Page 1 -

CALLTO ORDER

Mayor Wenke called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.
ROLL CALL

The following members were present: Mayor Wenke, Mr. Dembosky, Mr. Jagow, Mr. Fulton, Mr. Nordyke, Ms.
Patterson, and Mr. Wilhelm.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Wenke led the Pledge of Allegiance.

OTHERS PRESENT

Neal Marrs, Erin Christie, Melane Rella, Jerry Peters, Karen Jagow, Steve & Cindy Cool, Lisa Kelley, Charlene Leopold,
Brian Clince, Chris Medina, Michael Trujillo, Anthony Trujilo, Kit Rogers, Eric Messick, Jeremiah Coleman, Pam & Bob
Wolf, Tim & Lizanne Humphreys, Ray Tannenbaum (Zoom), Kevin Coates (Zoom), Michael Tooley (Zoom), Mike Heuss
(Zoom), Conor Daniells, Charlene Leopold, and Anita Gragg (Zoom).

TREASURER’S REPORT

REVENUE RECEIVED  BALANCE OF ACCOUNTS

General Fund Checking: S 124,394.68 S 282,480.68
CSafe-GF Core 11: S 1,030.26 S 275,543.26
CSafe-3% Tabor Reserve 13: S 272.62 S 72,887.38
CSafe-General Fund Reserve-14 S 1,678.90 S 449,046.14
CSafe-Tennis Ct.-Core-16 S 81.88 S 21,874.58
Tennis Court Checking: S 0.00 S 5,219.32
Municipal Court Checking: S 0.00 S 3,607.70
Conservation Trust Fund Checking: S 0.73 S 17,296.42
CSafe-CF Core 15 S 171.82 S 45,931.82
Capital Fund Checking: S 46.81 S 569,300.50
CSafe-CF Core 12: S 3,937.26 S 1,053,165.08
EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND: S 65,491.41

MUNICIPAL COURT: S 0.00

TENNIS COURT: S 0.00

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND: S 0.00

CAPITAL FUND: S 27,300.00

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

a. Approval of minutes
b. Treasurer’s Report
c. Approval of Bills

ACTION: Mr. Wilhelm moved, and Mr. Fulton seconded to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried.



BOARD OF TRUSTEES

TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2025

REGULAR MEETING
-Page 2 -

OLD BUSINESS

a. Consideration of a request to rezone Lot 6 in Shadow Ridge from highway commercial to single family
residence per the Planning Commission’s recommendation.

ACTION: Mr. Dembosky moved, and Mr. Nordyke seconded to approve rezoning Lot 6 in Shadow Ridge
from highway commercial to single family residence. Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS
a. Consideration of a request to approve a setback variance by the Wet Mtn. Fire Protection District.

Mr. Coleman reported that they are in the process of installing a generator for the Main Station located at 215
North 4t St. They are requesting a setback variance of 14 feet to the east, as well as 5 feet to the north to install
an additional propane tank. They have already received permission from the County.

ACTION: Mr. Fulton moved, and Mr. Jagow seconded to approve a setback variance for the Wet Mtn.
Fire Protection District. Motion carried.

b. Consideration of a request to approve a modification of premises at the Alta Convenience Store.

Mr. Coates reported that Alta is not trying to sell more beer; they just want to add a beer cave within the
convenience store. They want the beer to be separate from other beverages in the store, so itisin a distinct
area. The two local liquor store owners expressed concern that it would, in fact, increase Alta beer sales, which
would affect their revenue. Mr. Wilhelm inquired about the pallet sitting on the floor and Mr. Coates responded
that it is used only for temporary storage of beer when they are re-stocking, but it won’t be necessary if a beer
cave is allowed.

ACTION: Ms. Patterson moved, and Mr. Dembosky seconded to table this until August, when the Town
will have a new attorney. Motion carried.

c. Complete Business Solutions IT report.

Mr. Tannenbaum reported that progress has been made in updating the Town computers and emails for
security. Firewalls have been installed, and the next step will be migrating all of the Town email addresses. A
new phone system will also be installed. This is the first phase of bringing all Town equipment up to date with
best practices for security. The Board requested that he provide a two or three-year plan for the total
completion of this project so they have it to plan for the 2026 budget.

ACTION: Mr. Jagow moved, and Mr. Wilhelm seconded to move forward with this plan. Motion
carried.

d. Consideration of a request to approve waiving future light permits for events at the Saddle Club.
There was not a representative from the Saddle Club in attendance. In addition, the Board would like the

new attorney to draft a light ordinance. Mr. Jagow expressed concern that the Saddle Club has been turning
their lights on every Thursday night since April without a permit. Mr. Dembosky wants them to be fined



BOARD OF TRUSTEES

TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2025

REGULAR MEETING
-Page 3 -

every day that they are in violation. Ms. Patterson wants to do some research on dark skies compliant lights
and bring the information to the Board and thinks the Town’s light ordinance needs to be redone.

A motion was presented by Mr. Jagow to reject the request, but Ms. Patterson pointed out that without a
representative from the Saddle Club present, the Board cannot vote on it.

ACTION: Mr. Jagow moved, and Mr. Dembosky seconded to table this until August when all parties are
present. Motion carried.

e. Consideration of a request for information related to weed spraying.

Ms. Kelley requested to know what chemicals are being used to spray for weeds. She would also like a
schedule of when spraying will occur. Mr. Marrs reported that it depends on the weather — if it is windy
they cannot spray. He said spraying is conducted twice a year — spring and late summer/early fall.
Herbicides are used, not pesticides, and chemicals are applied according to label directions. Herbicides are
considered non-harmful to pollinators and are watered into the ground via the sprinkler system, and do not
reach Grape Creek. Flags are put up in the parks when spraying; however, they are often displaced by
weather or the public. It was agreed that the Town will post notices on Facebook when spraying will occur
and use temporary signage to alert park users to active spraying.

f. Discussion and approval of the Westcliffe Parks Advisory Committee July report.

Mr. Dembosky reported that there is not enough shade in Town, especially at Memorial Park. Another issue
is that some trees in the parks are dying. So, he proposed adding trees for more shade and creating a plan
to increase the planting of trees to have a good distribution of ages, so if a tree dies, there are already other
younger ones to replace it.

In support of the proposal above Mr. Dembosky requested that money be used from budget line item
CRF9012 (Town Property) in the Capital Fund, which currently includes park upgrades to the Hermit Park
restroom, planter boxes and trees, and lights. Mayor Wenke reported that there will be a budget workshop
to amend the 2025 budget and he would like to discuss this in that workshop. In addition, he wants any
discussion of trees to include Main Street, not just the parks. There used to be trees on Main Street but
most of since died and he wants to replace those. The dead ones will need to be removed. Ms. Patterson
reminded the Board that in a previous budget workshop it had been discussed to push the money for trees
to next year because of some of the unexpected expenses the Town has incurred, and the additional money
needed to bring the Town's technology up to date.

ACTION: Mr. Dembosky moved, and Mr. Fulton seconded to approve two tree plant zones and to
support a future tree planting plan. Motion carried.

g. Discussion offering possible alternate budget concepts to support preserving the park's budget.

Mr. Dembosky reported that he would like to use the reserve account for unexpected expenses so that other
line items in the budget (like the Parks) aren’t affected. Mayor Wenke explained that the Town has a policy
to keep 25% of the overall budget in the reserve account in the event a recession or a natural disaster
occurred so that the Town could still operate and pay bills. Ms. Christie reported that this is also what the
auditor recommends as best practice — only use reserves for real emergencies, not unexpected costs.



BOARD OF TRUSTEES

TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2025

REGULAR MEETING
-Page 4 -

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

Mr. Heuss reported that maintenance of the parks for safety reasons should be prioritized over planting new trees.

STAFF & COMMITTEE REPORTS

Ms. Patterson reported that when she was in Salida, she took a sample of the rubber material that is underneath the
playground in their park. That is something that CIRSA has recommended the Town use rather than gravel. She will
contact the City of Salida to see what the pricing was and if they received grant money to doit.

Ms. Christie reported that the Local Planning Capacity Grant was not awarded to the Custer County Workforce Housing,
not because DOLA didn’t want to help the County, but because the application was missing the specific buzzwords that
the State looks for. There is another application window in August, and DOLA advised the Town Clerks and Barry Keene
on how to fix the application.

PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

Mr. Fulton moved, and Mr. Dembosky seconded to adjourn. Motion carried.
ADJOURN

Recorded by:
Erin Christie
Town Clerk



REVENUES RECEIVED IN JULY 2025

GENERAL FUND
|Cash
Townsend, Jay Sign permit 25.00
Sangre Shades, LLC New business license 40.00
Wilkerson, Steve Park damage deposit 100.00
Moreno, Suzanne Park damage deposit 100.00
The Wolff LLC New business license 40.00
Hobbs, Dan Building permit 935.00
Credit Card
McCarthy, Erin Park damage deposit 100.00
Kauffman, Jeremy Park rental fee and damage deposit 125.00
Reed, Bob Park rental fee and damage deposit 125.00
Checks
Tyran, Timothy Fence permit 100.00
CF Altitude Liquor license 50.00
0Old Country Construction Building permit 1,055.00§
Young, Jenny Sign permit 25.00}
Antler's Liquor Liquor license 50.00
Foster, Larry Park rental fee & damage deposit 140.00
Moore, Patricia New busines license 40.00
Kickshaw LLC Transient merchant license 200.00}
Brush Hollow Creek Construction Building permit 2,273.00
Lewsader, Kole Fence permit 100.00
Flickinger, Cory STR renewal 150.00
Custer County Treasurer 2,039.21

INC- Current Interest §7.27

RBC-Current Road & Bridge $351.62

RLC-Current Tax $616.91

SOA-Specific Ownership A $550.51

SOB-Specifice Ownership B 5532.41

TFC-Treasurer Fee -$19.51
United Business Bank Interest 28.58
State of Colorado Cigarette Tax 148.74
State of Colorado Sales Tax 113,392.08
State of Colorado Highway Users Tax 3,013.07
GENERAL FUND CHECKING REVENUE RECEIVED IN JULY 2025 $124,394.68|
CSafe-GF Core-11 Interest 1,030.26
CSafe-3% Tabor Reserve-13 Interest 272.62
CSafe-GF Reserve-14 Interest 1,678.90
CSafe-GF Reserve-16 Interest 81.88

TENNIS COURT PROJECT CHECKING

TENNIS COURT PROJECT CHECKING REVENUE RECEIVED IN JULY 2025

$0.00|



MUNICIPAL COURT CHECKING REVENUE RECEIVED IN JULY 2025

$0.00

REVENUES RECEIVED IN JULY 2025

United Business Bank Interest 0.73
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND REVENUE RECEIVED IN JULY 2024 $0.73
[Csafe-CF Core 15 Interest $171.82|
United Business Bank Interest Capital Fund Checking 46.81
State of Colorado (Town of Westcliffe) 1% Sales Tax 37,797.36
Verizon Wireless Lease Payment 1,100.00
State of Colorado HNA Reibursement Request #1 EIAFS970 6930.00
CAPITAL FUND CHECKING REVENUE RECEIVED IN JULY 2025 $45,874.17
CSafe-CF Core 12 [Interest $3,937.26|

BALANCE IN ALL FUND ACCOUNTS

CASH BALANCE OF ALL FUND ACCOUNTS

NOTE: 1% Sales tax of $37,797.36 was transferred to the Capital Fund from the General Fund.

GENERAL FUND CHECKING $282,480.68

CSafe-GF Core-11 $275,543.26

CSafe-3% Tabor Reserve-13 $72,887.38

CSafe-GF Reserve-14 $449,046.14

CSafe-GF Reserve-16 $21,874.58

TENNIS COURT PROJECT CHECKING $5,219.32

MUNICIPAL COURT CHECKING $3,607.70

TOTAL GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS $1,107,051.36

[CONSERVATION TRUST FUND CHECKING $17,296.42]
CSafe-CF Core 15 545,931.82

$63,228.24

[CAPITAL FUND CHECKING $569,300.50
CSafe-CF Core 12 $1,053,165.08

$1,622,465.58

$2,775,448.76



GENERAL FUND

Airgas USA Vehicle Maint/parts 54,15
American Legion Street closure deposit refund 250.00
Austin, Gloria Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Black Hills Energy Lights/Electric 1,990.25
Card Services Office Supplies 468.27
CarQuest Vehicle Maint/parts 81.81
CenturyLink Phone/Elevator 50.08
Complete Business Systems Email migration and phone sysem installation 1,750.00
Daniells, Conor Final Town reimbursement health insurance 196.52
Fore, Shana Park usee damage deposit refund 100.00
Grainger Park Maint/supplies 1,536.59
Hartbauer, Brad Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Hilltop Broadband Internet 273.35
Hough Electric Switch & light installation mechanical room 240.00
Infinity Leasing IT Service Contract with CBS 629.50
Kauffman, Jeremy Park damage deposit refund 100.00
Kenyon, Mindy Park damage deposit refund 100.00
Lowe's Pay and Save, Inc. Supplies 24.43
Moreno, Suzanne Park damage deposit refund 100.00
Norup Gas Propane 164.48
Outdoor Aluminum Park bleachers 3,329.00
Owen, Georgina Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Peac Solutions Monthly copy machine fee 332.67
Pomp's Tire Service Vehicle Maint/supplies 514.00
River Valley Plumbing & Heating Vehicle Maint/supplies 828.63
Rock Parts Co. (NAPA) Vehicle Main/supplies 15.18
Seifert Enerprises Street Maint 704.34
Steele, JJ Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Stover, Thomas Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Thompson Striping Road & line striping 3,530.00
Tovrea, Sheri Two employee random drug tests 40.00
Uline Park Maint/supplies 1,681.73
Valley Ace Hardware Supplies 400.58
Van Diest Supply Co. Street Maint/supplies 1,170.00
Westcliffe Petroleum Street Maint/supplies 562.08
Wilkerson, Steve Park use damage deposit refund 100.00
Wet Mtn Tribune Publishing services 116.16
Payroll Expenses

CEBT Employer/Health Ins. 2,221.66
CEBT Employee/Health Ins. 250.14
EFTPS Payroll Taxes 8,633.10
GWRS Employee Share Retirement Fund (ACH) 2,205.71
GWRS Employer Share Retirement Fund (ACH) 1,544.31
Colo Dept of Labor & Employment 2nd Qtr State Unemployment 194.25
Colorado Dept of Revenue 2nd Qtr State witholding 3,576.00




BILLS TO DATE $40,558.97

JULY 2025 PAYROLL $24,932.44
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES FOR JULY 2025 $65,491.41

CAPITAL FUND

Community Attributes Housing Needs Assessment Firm June services 27,300.00
TOTAL CAPITAL FEUND EXPENDITURES FOR JULY 2025 $27,300.00

The undersigned acknowledges that the above
listed invoices were presented for review.




1:41 PM Town of Westcliffe

08/01/25 General Fund Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis July 2025
Jul 25 Budget Jan-Jul 25 YTD Budget Annual Budget
Income
7000 - General Property Taxes 616.91 5,926.02 55,251.97 41,482.18 71,112.28
7050 - Specific Ownership Taxes 1,082.92 666.67 4,767.76 4,666.65 8,000.00
7100 - Town Sales Taxes 75,594.72 76,721.70 453,875.14 537,051.95 920,660.45
7101 - Town Sales Tax License 470.00 333.33 5,510.00 2,333.35 4,000.00
7106 - Penalities & Int-Delinquent Tax 7.27 16.67 131.42 116.65 200.00
7115 - Franchise Fee 0.00 3,000.00 14,524.08 21,000.00 36,000.00
7120 - Special Assesments 0.00 208.33 -3,009.15 1,458.35 2,500.00
7125 - Building & Zoning Permits 3,328.00 3,333.33 29,394.50 23,333.35 40,000.00
7126 - Fence/Sign/Excavation Permits 250.00 66.67 775.00 466.65 800.00
7127 - Special Use By Review Permits 0.00 25.00 0.00 175.00 300.00
7130 - Traffic Fines & Ordinances 0.00 8.33 0.00 58.35 100.00
7135 - Court Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7140 - Liquor Licenses/Special Events 100.00 125.00 845.00 875.00 1,500.00
7148 - Disposable Bag Fee 0.00 208.33 967.74 1,458.35 2,500.00
7150 - Cigarette Tax 148.74 266.67 691.24 1,866.65 3,200.00
7160 - Interest Income 0.00 3,500.00 21,714.99 24,500.00 42,000.00
7165 : Miscellaneous Income 0.00 83.33 35.45 583.35 1,000.00
7200 - Highway Users Tax 0.00 2,448.64 14,416.69 17,140.47 29,383.67
7205 - Road & Bridge Funds 351.62 3,027.08 29,632.85 21,189.60 36,325.00
7215 - American Rescue Plan Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7239 - Condtibutions from General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7300 - Tennis Court Donation Fund 0.00 4.17 0.00 29.15 50.00
7305 - Events Center-Rental Fees 0.00 275.00 0.00 1,925.00 3,300.00
7310 - Bluff Site Maint. Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7315 - Park Usage Fee 80.00 133.33 6,130.00 933.35 1,600.00
7807 - Reimbursed Expenses 0.00 0.00 235.00 0.00 0.00
7810 - Transfers In 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7820 - Lease Equipment-| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7840 - State Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7845 - Federal Grant 0.00 16.67 0.00 116.65 200.00
7871 - Grant-SIPA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7940 - Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Income 82,040.18 100,394.27 636,293.68 702,760.05 1,204,731.40
Cost of Goods Sold
5001 - Cost of Goods Sold 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total COGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Profit 82,040.18 100,394.27 636,293.68 702,760.05 1,204,731.40
Expense
void 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4001 « Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8000 - Trustees 24.43 333.33 1,292.42 2,333.35 4,000.00
8005 - Ordinances & Procedures 154.16 950.00 1,602.38 6,650.00 11,400.00
8010 - Colo. Muni League Dues 0.00 83.33 0.00 583.35 1,000.00
8015 - Elections 0.00 291.67 0.00 2,041.65 3,500.00
8020 : General Accounting 0.00 141.67 0.00 991.65 1,700.00
8025 - Auditing 0.00 833.33 5,000.00 5,833.35 10,000.00
8030 - Attorney 0.00 1,666.67 11,833.33 11,666.65 20,000.00
8035 - Insurance - General 0.00 1,463.50 19,889.95 10,244.50 17,562.00
8040 - Workman's Compensation 0.00 691.67 9,638.00 4,841.65 8,300.00
8050 - Colorado State Unemployment 18.82 52.01 627.80 364.14 624.19
8100 - Town's Share FICA 2,109.66 1,612.50 13,490.03 11,287.45 19,349.95
8110 - Town's Share MEDI 493.39 377.11 3,154.93 2,639.84 4,525.39
8115 - Town Share Health Insurance 3,076.99 4,799.75 21,618.48 33,598.25 57,597.00
8120 - Town Share Retirement Fund 1,544.31 1,560.48 8,004.94 10,923.35 18,725.75
8201 - Administrative Wages
8200 - Clerk/Treasurer Wages 12,083.34 0.00 71,416.70 0.00 0.00
8205 : Deputy Clerk 0.00 0.00 7,979.25 0.00 0.00
8235 - Building Inspector 1,489.31 0.00 8,964.08 0.00 0.00
8201 - Administrative Wages - Other 0.00 18,966.67 0.00 132,766.65 227,600.00
Total 8201 - Administrative Wages 13,572.65 18,966.67 88,360.03 132,766.65 227,600.00
8208 - Communications Manager 0.00 2,000.00 13,000.00 14,000.00 24,000.00
8209 - Administrative Education 0.00 875.00 0.00 6,125.00 10,500.00
8210 - Clerk Education 0.00 0.00 2,263.28 0.00 0.00
8215 - Office Supplies 0.00 300.00 0.00 2,100.00 3,600.00
8220 - Town Manager Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8225 - Manager/Bldg/Zoning Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8236 - Project Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8240 - County Treasurer's Fees 19.51 166.67 1,699.94 1,166.65 2,000.00
8245 - Municipal Court Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8250 - Municipal Court Postage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8280 - Payroll Expenses 196.52 0.00 786.08 0.00 0.00
8300 - Town Hall Maintenance 1,672.44 1,416.67 23,049.03 9,916.65 17,000.00
8308 - Town Hall Utilities 2,116.00 1,000.00 7,564.67 7,000.00 12,000.00
8310 - Lease Equipment 0.00 0.00 463.55 0.00 0.00
8315 - Lease Principal 0.00 120.50 0.00 843.50 1,446.00
8316+ Lease Interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8405 - Animal Control 0.00 66.67 334.92 466.65 800.00
8410 - Organizational Membership Dues 0.00 83.33 360.00 583.35 1,000.00
8415 - Recycling Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8501 - Seaonal Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8505 - Public Works Education 0.00 500.00 153.00 3,500.00 6,000.00

Pagel



1:41PM Town of Westcliffe

08/01/25 General Fund Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis July 2025
Jul 25 Budget Jan - Jul 25 YTD Budget Annual Budget
8506 - Public Works Wages
8510 - Street and Park Tech Wages 20,682.51 0.00 130,942.27 0.00 0.00
8506 - Public Works Wages - Other 0.00 16,202.00 0.00 113,413.90 194,423.90
Total 8506 - Public Works Wages 20,682.51 16,202.00 130,942.27 113,413.90 194,423.90
8508 - Street & Park Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8515 - Street Maintenance & Fuel 5,966.42 5,000.00 26,402.66 35,000.00 60,000.00
8520 - Emergency Snow Removal 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 17,500.00 30,000.00
8525 - Street Lighting 1,467.07 1,333.33 8,653.25 9,333.35 16,000.00
8530 - Vehicle & Equip. Maintenance 665.14 2,500.00 10,152.44 17,500.00 30,000.00
8538 - Shop Maintenance 1,284.37 1,000.00 11,777.67 7,000.00 12,000.00
8540 - Shop Utilities 172.98 750.00 3,799.34 5,250.00 9,000.00
8545 - Highway Barn Utilities 19431 583.33 3,095.74 4,083.35 7,000.00
8550 - Highway Barn Maint. 0.00 333.33 0.00 2,333.35 4,000.00
8600 - Park Utilities 277.80 3,333.33 14,196.08 23,333.35 40,000.00
8605 - Park Maintanence 6,492.16 2,250.00 28,991.48 15,750.00 27,000.00
8700 - Custer County Sheriff 0.00 5,358.33 93,225.00 37,508.35 64,300.00
8800 - Donations 0.00 1,725.00 2,144.50 12,075.00 20,700.00
8802 - Plastic Pollution Act 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8805 - Grants/Local 0.00 2,083.33 0.00 14,583.35 25,000.00
8806 - American Rescue Plan Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8807 - Marketing 0.00 416.67 350.00 2,916.65 5,000.00
8808 - Economic Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8810 - Contingencies 0.00 1,666.67 0.00 11,666.65 20,000.00
8811 - Contribution to/fromCapital Fun 0.00 8,333.33 0.00 58,333.35 100,000.00
8820 + Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00
8900 - Principal GLTD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8950 - Interest GLTD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9014 - Equipment Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9340 - Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Expense 62,201.64 95,721.18 667,917.19 670,048.28 1,148,654.18
Net Income 19,838.54 4,673.09 -31,623.51 32,711.77 56,077.22

Page 2



1:14 PM Town of Westcliffe

08/01/25 CTF Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis July 2025
Jul 25 Budget Jan - Jul 25 YTD Budget Annual Budget
Income
7000 - State Lottery Income 0.00 500.00 2,999.50 3,600.00 6,000.00
7050 - Interest Income 0.73 166.66 1,009.96 1,166.70 2,000.00
Total Income 0.73 666.66 4,009.46 4,666.70 8,000.00
Gross Profit 0.73 666.66 4,009.46 4,666.70 8,000.00
Expense
9001 - Capital Outlay 0.00 4,583.33 0.00 32,083.35 55,000.00
Total Expense 0.00 4,583.33 0.00 32,083.35 55,000.00
Net Income 0.73 -3,916.67 4,009.46 -27,416.65 -47,000.00

Page 1



TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

1:21 PM
08/01/25 Capital Fund Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis July 2025
Jul 25 Budget Jan - Jul 25 YTD Budget Annual Budget
Income
CRF7225 Federal Grants 0.00 202,500.00 0.00 1,417,500.00 2,430,000.00
CRF7160 - Interest Income 46.81 2,416.67 19,763.46 16,916.65 28,000.00
CRF7211 - Grants (New) TP-Audit 0.00 20,833.33 0.00 145,833.35 250,000.00
CRF7212 - Grant (New Town Property) 0.00 27,583.33 0.00 193,083.35 331,000.00
CRF7220 - Grants (New) RW 0.00 84,838.12
CRF7224 - Grants (Existing) Town Pro 0.00 833.33 0.00 5,833.35 10,000.00
CRF7238 - Other Contributions 0.00 166.67 0.00 1,166.65 2,000.00
CRF7270 - Lease Proceeds Verizon Tower 1,100.00 1,000.00 7,700.00 7,000.00 12,000.00
CRF7280 - Capital Lease Proceeds 0.00 1,861.48
CRF7285 - 1% Sales Tax from General Fund 37,797.36 38,381.25 226,820.72 268,668.75 460,575.00
CRF7810 - Transfers From General Fund 0.00 100,000.00
Total Income 38,944.17 293,714.58 440,983.78 2,056,002.10 3,524,575.00
Expense
CRF7230 - State Grants 0.00 28,500.00 0.00 199,500.00 342,000.00
CRF9011 - CIP Roadway (Existing) 0.00 20,833.33 224,906.00 145,833.35 250,000.00
CRF9012 - CIP Town Property (Existing) 0.00 11,666.67 0.00 81,666.65 140,000.00
CRF9014 - Equipment Debt Service 0.00 1,688.25 19,409.24 11,817.75 20,259.00
CRF9025 - CIP Roadway (New) 0.00 248,125.00 0.00 1,736,875.00 2,977,500.00
CRF9026 - CIP-Town Property (New) 0.00 35,104.17 27,522.21 245,729:15 421,250.00
CRF9027 - CIP-Equipment (New) 0.00 2,478.42 0.00 17,348.90 29,741.00
CRF9101 - Improvements-Design 20,370.00 10,000.00 58,670.00 70,000.00 120,000.00
CRFVoid - Void 0.00 0.00
Total Expense 20,370.00 358,395.84 330,507.45 2,508,770.80 4,300,750.00
Net Income 18,574.17 -64,681.26 110,476.33 -452,768.70 -776,175.00

Page 1



%L1 08'€80°079 0976990 0T68C¢CIY SLSPL'66T 1 8S8PTEEr  LIL6F998  S6'STSLLT'T 96'1¥8°STH  66'€89°168  "TVLOL
2%00°001- 00°0 00°0 SR'T6S601 S6'0£579¢ 06'190°€L 89OTLI'VL CTYTLYT St 8FF oY Daa
%00°001- 0070 00°0 LS S8ITO 61°S6E" 1€ 8E€°06L°TY £6°1L8°501 #9'06T°S¢ 6T 185°0L "AON
07'SL €1°¢e LT0S 09711 L8€E €41
9007001~ 0070 00°0 SLI¥6°0T1 TLEIE0F £7°LT9°08 9L'8T6°LO STY9LO'SE [STSO'IL L0
ST9¢ 80°CI LI'vT 05°0¢1 05 ¢r 00°L8
%00°001- 0070 00°0 €L EVTOE] 8SVI¥ S1°678'98 SE08E'EC] S1° 09" vh 0€°0T6'88 "LddS
LO'08E 699C1 8E°€ST 00192 00°L8 00 PLI
%00°001- 000 00°0 LOFIS8II 69'709°6¢ 8€°607°6L 76'ST0PT1 LOIVE TP €6'€89°T8 DNV
%00°001- 0070 00°0 CO'1S6'TEN TOLLE by £0FL9°88 16'2E€0°1€1 v9'LLYEY LTSGSELS A0l
I+ %
0S°LIT 0SCL 00°S¥1
%06T Tl 18°LEF 9% 09°T18°'8¥ 1T°6T9°L6 TO'TIVOEL L6OLY €Y S6°1176°98 91°TOTSEL 6€L90°SH LLFELD6 ANNC
0L°LE LSTI £1'st 06'C L60 €61
%ITT 80TOE LN 9ELOLLE TLY6SSL 08 108°801 LTLITHE €SPESTTL 61 ¥S0°TH] LETISELE T8 TOLYL AVIA
0F'SL E1'SC LTOS 167651 L1'ES €901
%860~ ¥T'895°16 SL'TTS0E 61 SH0° 19 0L'TLY'TO €THTY 0 L¥'8Y9°19  |68780€°88 0€'9Er 6C 65TL8'8S Udv
00°6¢ L9°6 £eol
9%C9'8 80°LTLTOI 9ETHTYE TL'V8Y°89 6F LLSFO £8°6TS 1€ 99°1€0°¢9 80°060°66 £0'0€0°CE £0°090°99 HVIN
0S¢ty 0S¥l 00'6C 0S°cr 05¥1 00'6C
%806 CO8IL18 vS6ETLT 60'6LF VS 079167 LOTLO'PE CUPP6'or TSOLY 18 P8'9C1°LT 89 C1E RS a4
10'76¢ PEIEL L9°T9T 0§°CL L1I'¥T £E 8 0S¥l £8'F L9°6
Y%be8- §€099°¢8 8L°988°LT LSELLSS 0169716 €0 €TH 0E LO9FE 09 SC6Y1YS 8L°670°8C LS 66095 NVI
XE |, sojeS XEB ] S9|eS XB ] S9|eS
[BI0L %€ 18I0 %€ 1¥101L %€
-+ % S20T $20C ST0T a0t L4 20T £€70C £20T €707

SNOSIHVJINOD SHVIAA HOIUd % XV.L SHTVS €707




TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON AGENDA
Office of the Town Clerk
P.O. Box 406
Westcliffe, CO. 81252
townclerk@townofwestcliffe.com
719-783-2282

X Westcliffe Town Board Westcliffe Planning Commission

Here are things you need to know:
= You must contact the Town staff prior to coming to the Board. Quite often the issue can

be resolved by staff action.
= Please plan on attending the meeting. The Board of Trustees will be unable to take
action without a representative in attendance.

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than ten (10) days prior
to the Board meeting to the above address or bring it to the Town Hall at 1000 Main Street our
office hours are Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Regular Board meetings are
scheduled for the first Monday of each month.)

Name of person making presentation: Kevin Coates
CF Altitude LLC, d/b/a Alta

Organization, if speaking on behalf of a group:

Is this a request for Board action? No

Please provide a summary of your comments:

A Modification of Premises application has been submitted to change the current alcohol storage.

A refrigerated beer/wine cave will be added to the licensed premises pending approval. There

will also be three unrefrigerated alcohol display areas added to the licenses premises.

What staff member have you spoken to about this? Please summarize your discussion:

We submitted the Modification application to Erin, the Town Clerk. She ask us to complete

this Request form.

Contact information:

Michael Tooley

Name:
Ma”mg Address: 455 Sherman Street, Suite 300, Denver, CO 80203
email: mtooley@dillanddill.com; licensing@dillanddill.com

Daytime Phone: 303-282-411 I(direct) or 303-777-3737 (office)




Instruction Sheet for Permit Application and Report of Changes
For All Sections, Complete Questions on Page 2

[]

Section A

To Register or Change Managers, check the appropriate box in section A and complete question 10
on page 6. Proceed to the Oath of Applicant for signature. Submit to State Licensing

Authority for approval.

Section B

For a Duplicate license, be sure to include the liquor license number in section B on page 1 and

proceed to page 8 for Oath of Applicant signature.

Section C
Check the appropriate box in section C
and proceed below.

For a Retail Warehouse Storage Permit, go to
page 4 complete questions in the section (be
sure to check the appropriate box). Submit the
necessary information and proceed to page 8

for Oath of Applicant signature. Submit to the
State Licensing Authority for approval.

For a Wholesale Branch House Permit, go
to page 4 and complete questions in the
section (be sure to check the appropriate
box). Submit the necessary information and
proceed to page 8 for Oath of Applicant
signature. Submit to the State Licensing
Authority for approval.

To Change Trade Name or Corporation
Name, go to page 4 and complete

questions in the section (be sure to check

the appropriate box). Submit the necessary
information and proceed to page 8 for Oath

of Applicant signature. Retail Liquor License
submit to the Local Liquor Licensing Authority
(City or County). Manufacturer, Wholesaler and
Importer’s Liquor Licenses submit to the State
Liquor Licensing Authority.

To modify Premise, or add Sidewalk Service
Area, go to page 7 and complete all

guestions. Submit the necessary information
and proceed to page 8 for Oath of Applicant
signature. Retail Liquor License submit to

the Local Liquor Licensing Authority (City

or County). Manufacturer, Wholesaler and
Importer’s Liquor Licenses submit to the State
Liquor Licensing Authority.

DR 8442 (02/26/24)

For Optional Premises go to page 7 and
complete all questions. Submit the necessary
information and proceed to page 8 for

QOath of Applicant signature. Retail Liquor
License submit to the Local Liquor Licensing
Authority (City or County).

To Change Location, go to page 5 and
complete questions in the section. Submit

the necessary information and proceed to

page 8 for Oath of Applicant signature.

Retail Liquor License submit permit application
or report of change to the Local Liquor Licensing
Authority (City or County). Manufacturer,
Wholesaler and Importer’s Liquor Licenses
submit to the State Liquor Licensing Authority.

Winery/Limited Winery Noncontiguous or
Primary Manufacturing Location Change,
go to page 6, and complete questions in

the section. Use this section to make a current
Noncontiguous Manufacturing Location into a
Primary Manufacturing Location, or a Primary
Manufacturing Location into a Noncontiguous
Manufacturing Location. To be eligible for

a Winery/Limited Winery Noncontiguous or
Primary Manufacturing Location Change, you
must be a Colorado state licensed manufacturer
of vinous liquor pursuant to section 44-3-402 or
44-3-403, C.R.S.

Campus Liquor Complex Designation, go to
page 8 and complete questions in the section.
Submit the necessary information and proceed
to page 8 for Oath of Applicant signature.

To add another Related Facility to an existing
Resort or Campus Liquor Complex, go to
page 8 and complete questions in the section.

Page 10of 8



DR 8442 (02/26/24)

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division

PO BOX 17087

Denver CO 80217-0087

(303) 205-2300 Permit Application and Report of Changes
All Answers Must Be Printed in Black Ink or Typewritten

Applicant is a (O Corporation () Individual () Partnership (@) Limited Liability Company
License Number

04-01886

Name of Licensee

CF Altitude LLC

Trade Name of Establishment (DBA)

Alta #6342

Address of Premises (specify exact location of premises)

425 South 6th Street

City ‘ County State ZIP Code
Westcliffe Custer CO | |81252
Business Email Address Business Phone Number
permits@unitedpacific.com 719-487-2167

Select the Appropriate Section Below and Reference the Instructions on Page 1.

Section A- Manager N/A

| Manager's Registration (Hotel & ReStaurant). ... $30.00
[ ] Manager's Registration (TAVEIN)............cccoo oo oo $30.00
] Manager's Registration (Lodging & Entertainment). ... $30.00
] Change of Manager (Other Licenses pursuant to section 44-3-301(8), C.R.S.).............. No Fee

Please note that Manager's Registration for Hotel & Restaurant, Lodging & Entertainment, and
Tavern licenses requires a local fee with submission to the local licensing authority as well. Please
reach out to local licensing authorities directly regarding local processing and fees.

Section B — Duplicate License N/A
] DUPNCAE LIGBINSE ... . $50.00

Page 2 0f 8



Section C

[ ] Retail Warehouse Storage Permit (€aCh)..............ccccoooioovoooooooooo $100.00
] Wholesale Branch House Permit (€8Ch)...........o.ooo oo $100.00
[ ] Change Corporation or Trade Name Permit (€ach)...................ccocooiioiioiioooee $50.00
[ ] Change Location Permit (€aCh)...................coooioooooeoeeeeeee e, . $150.00
[ ] Winery/Limited Winery Noncontiguous or Primary Manufacturing Location Change............. $150.00
n/] Change, Alter or Modify Premises.................................. $150.00 x |1 Total Fee: | 150.00
|| Addition of Optional Premises to

Existing Hotel/Restaurant ................................. $100.00 x Total Fee:
] Addition of Related Facility to an Existing

Resort or Campus Liquor CompleX............................... $160.00 x Total Fee:
] Campus Liquor Complex DeSIGNation.................ccooooiv oo No Fee
[[] SideWalk SEIVICEATEE. ... ... oo e ssssss sssssassssssons segesm s sgsnsn sasanass sobns st s SEET S PN $75.00

Do Not Write in This Space — For Department of Revenue Use Only

Date License Issued License Account Number Period

The State may convert your check to a one time electronic banking transaction. Your bank account may be debited as early as
the same day received by the State. If converted, your check will not be returned. If your check is rejected due to insufficient or
uncollected funds, the Department of Revenue may collect the payment amount directly from your bank account electronically.

Total Amount DUe. ... $ .

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 3 of 8



Storage Permit

Retail Warehouse Storage Permit or a Wholesalers Branch House Permit
N/A [] Retail Warehouse Permit for:
[ ] On-Premises Licensee (Taverns, Restaurants etc.)
[ | Off-Premises Licensee (Liquor stores)
[ | Wholesalers Branch House Permit

Address of Storage Premise

City County ZIP Code

Attach a deed/lease or rental agreement for the storage premises.
Attach a detailed diagram of the storage premises.

N/A Change Trade Name or Corporate Name

[ ] Change of Trade Name/DBA only
[ | Corporate Name Change (Attach the following supporting documents)

1. Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State, or
2. Statement of Change filed with the Secretary of State, and
3. Minutes of Corporate meeting, Limited Liability Members meeting, Partnership agreement.

Old Trade Name

New Trade Name

Old Corporate Name

New Corporate Name

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 4 of 8



N/A Change of Location

Note to Retail Licensees: An application to change location has a local application fee of $750
payable to your local licensing authority. You may only change location within the same jurisdiction as
the original license that was issued. Pursuant to 44-3-311(1) C.R.S. Your application must be on file
with the local authority thirty (30) days before a public hearing can be held.

Date filed with Local Authority Date of Hearing

Address of current premises.

Address

City County ZIP Code

Address of proposed New Premises
(Attach copy of the deed or lease that establishes possession of the premises by the licensee)

Address

City County ~ ZIP Code

New mailing address if applicable.

Address

City County State  ZIP Code
\

Attach detailed diagram of the premises showing where the alcohol beverages will be stored,
served, possessed or consumed. Include kitchen area(s) for hotel and restaurants.

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 5 of 8



N/A Winery/Limited Winery Noncontiguous or Primary Manufacturing Location Change

Select the option that applies to your situation:

(O Make a current Primary Manufacturing Location (Location 1) into a Noncontiguous Location
(Location 2); or

(O Make a current Noncontiguous Manufacturing Location (Location 1) into a Primary
Manufacturing Location (Location 2).

Address of Location 1:

Address

City County ZIP Code

Address of Location 2:

Address
City County ZIP Code

|
N/A Change of Manager

Change of Manager or to Register the Manager of a Tavern, Hotel and Restaurant, Lodging &
Entertainment liquor license or licenses pursuant to section 44-3-301(8), C.R.S.

Change of Manager

Former Manager's Name

New Manager’'s Name

Date of Employment

Has manager ever managed a liquor licensed establishment?.................... O Yes (O No

Does manager have a financial interest in any other liquor
licensed establishment?................. e O Yes (O No

If yes, give name and location of establishment

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 6 of 8



Modify Premises or Addition of Optional Premises, Related Facility, or Sidewalk Service Area

Note: Licensees may not modify or add to their licensed premises until approved by state and
local authorities.

(a) Describe change proposed

Move the FMB/Wine product from the three (3) doors in the cooler to the beer/wine cave location as
depicted on the proposed floor plan. Addition of two (2) small areas for seasonal/temporary
unrefrigerated displays as depicted on the proposed floor plan.

(b) If the modification is temporary, when will the proposed change:

Start (month/day/year) End (month/day/year)
N/A (Permanent)

Note: The total state fee for temporary modification is $300.00

(c) Will the proposed change result in the licensed premises now being located
within 500 feet of any public or private school that meets compulsory
education requirements of Colorado law, or the principal campus of any

(If yes, explain in detail and describe any exemptions that apply)

(d) Is the proposed change in compliance with local building and zoning laws?.......... @ Yes (O No

(e) If this modification is for an additional Hotel and Restaurant Optional Premises
has the local authority authorized by resolution or ordinance the issuance of A
OptioNal PremMISES?. . e Yes () No

(f) Attach a diagram of the current licensed premises and a diagram of the proposed changes for the
licensed premises.

(g) Attach any existing lease that is revised due to the modification. No revisions made to existing lease

(h) For the addition of a Sidewalk Service Area per Regulation 47-302(A)(4), 1 C.C.R. 203-2,
include documentation received from the local governing body authorizing use of the sidewalk.
Documentation may include but is not limited to a statement of use, permit, easement, or other
legal permissions.

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 7 of 8



N/A Campus Liquor Complex Designation

An institution of higher education or a person who contracts with the institution to provide food services
| wish to designate my existing:

Liquor License Type Liquor License Number
to @ Campus LiIqUOr COMPIEX..........ooivii oo O Yes (O No
N/A Additional Related Facility

To add a Related Facility to an existing Resort or Campus Liquor Complex, include the name of the
Related Facility and include the address and an outlined drawing of the Related Facility Premises.

Address of Related Facility

Address
City State  ZIP Code
Outlined diagram provided. ... O Yes (O No

Oath of Applicant

| declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that | have read the foregoing application and alll
attachments thereto, and that all information therein is true, correct, and complete to the best of my knowledge.

Print Name Title
i

Anita Gragg Manager-Regulatory Affairs
Signature Date (MM/DD/YY)

O\_Gb\o\omr 6/18/2025

Report and Approval of Local Licensing Authority (City / County)

The foregoing application has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character of
the applicant is satisfactory, and we do report that such permit, if granted, will comply with the applicable
provisions of Title 44, Articles 4 and 3, C.R.S., as amended. Therefore, This Application is Approved.

Local Licensing Authority (City or County) Date filed with Local Authority

Signature Title Date (MM/DD/YY)

Report of State Licensing Authority

The foregoing has been examined and complies with the filing requirements of Title 44, Article 3,
C.R.S., as amended.

Signature Title Date (MM/DD/YY)

DR 8442 (02/26/24) Page 8 of 8



6/24/25, 9:50 AM

Common Checkout Payment Receipt

Alta #6342
License #04-01886

Payment Receipt Confirmation

Your payment was successfully processed.

Receipt Contact Information

Modification of Premises

Contact Name
Contact Email

Contact Phone 303-205-2300

Transaction Summary

Liquor Enforcement Division
dor_liglicensing@state.co.us

Contact Url https://sbg.colorado.gov/contact-
the-liquor-and-tobacco-
enforcement-division

Contact Address 1707 Cole Blvd,, Suite 300

Lakewood, CO 80401

| Description
DOR Liquor Enforcement Division Payment
Service Fee
TOTAL

Receipt Confirmation

$150.00
$1.00
$151.00

This online service is provided by a 3rd party working in partnership with the state of Colorado. The price of items purchased through this service
includes revenue used to develop, maintain, and enhance the state's official web portal, Colorado.gov.

Customer Information

Amount [

Customer Name
Company Name
Local Reference ID

Anita Gragg

CF Altitude LLC
1b2b19f8-5f91-4f34-b344-
129d35222e75

Payment Information

6/24/2025
09:50:44 AM MDT

Receipt Date
Receipt Time

Payment Type Electronic Check

Billing Information

***7"**6676
251351478
United Pacific

Account Number
Order ID
Name on Account

Billing Address 8400 E Prentice Ave

Address 2 Suite 400

Billing City, State Greenwood Village, CO
Billing Zip/Postal Code 80111

Country us

https://securecheckout.cdc.nicusa.com/Checkout/Receipt?mode=print

Phone Number 7203927326
This receipt has been emailed to the address below.
Email Address anita.gragg@unitedpacific.com

171



a8ero)g joyooly = []

wooiyle
e ealy 1915130y

10 Feet

wioodyleg

ealy Juieas 1awolsn)

BaJY 1|30 UIBIUNOY

pUB 384407 3DIAIIS §|3S
BlOpUOD BjOpu0Y ejopuon e|lopuon

60 Feet

Customer Seating

50 Feet

30140 pue
woouydeg

ealy 129|007 adesanag adexey

wooJyieg
aakojdwy

ealy a8el01g

adesen/asnoyaiep adelols

Garage Door

25 Feet

1994 0¢

TSTT8 0D ‘21152 M
NV1d 40074 A3A0OUddV LNIHHND 192435 Y19 S SZ¥

ZFE9 IIUBIUBAUO) BYY



vary Aepdsi(] pareraguyornu ) = ﬂ
aFe101§ [OYOIY = _u

woouyieg

ealy 19)s18ay

eaJe uileas Jswoisn

10 Feet

woolyjeg ealy Ae|dsig

IM/EINS patelabiaiun

(ebelioig

60 Feet

» % pejesabley)
.vnlﬂ- r

& ealy 113Q W AABD) BUIAA
@

g e|0puon e|opuog ejopuon pue 3ayo) f 199 asodol

£ 22IAI2S J|9S | / dap d
IS

50 Feet

eale Aejdsig

Keydsi@aUnvanS A
pajesablyaiun pajeseblaiun | SHOPUe

wooJaxleg

ealy 429|007 adelanag adeyied

ealy 29e.015 wooJyieg

aahojdwy

adesenfasnoyalepn adelols

Garage Door

25 Feet

TSI 0D ‘O 12159/\
NV1d 40014 d3s0d0yd 19915 Y19 S STv

ZVE9 22UlUaNUD) EYY



vory Aepdsi(] pajesaduyaru) = n
23eI01§ [0YO0I] Y = D

woolyieg

ealy 1915189y

eaJe Jupeas Jowoisn

wooJyieg

(ebeioi1g

60 Feet

£ ® pajesablay)
@ - —~

& ealy l1e@ | _m...,m,,u an_>>
@

g ejopuco e|opuoo ejopuon pue 234309 19a¢g pasodol

m 201A19G |35 \. m U &
5]

50 Feet

eale Aejdsig

SuEINA
pajelablyaiun M0 pue

woouxyoeg

ealy 419|007 adelenag odeyoed

eaJy adel0ls woodyleq

aahojdw3

afesenfasnoyaiepn adeliols

Garage Door

25 Feet

STI8 0D ‘aPIIIM
NVI1d 40014 dA3S0d0dd AAANTNYV 193Rs W9 S Sty

ZPE9 20UBIUBAUOD) BYY



Erin

From: John Van Doren <senecal411@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 13, 2025 10:38 AM

To: Erin

Cc: Deb Adams

Subject: Re: August 19th BOT

TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE
REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON AGENDA
Office of the Town Clerk
P.O. Box 406
Westcliffe, CO. 81252

townelerk@townofwestcliffe.com
719-783-2282

KX Westcliffe Town Board Westcliffe Planning Commission

Here are things you need to know:
*  You must contact the Town staff prior to coming to the Board. Quite often the issue can
be resolved by staff action.
» Please plan on attending the meeting. The Board of Trustees will be unable to take
action without a representative in attendance.

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than ten (10) days prior
to the Board meeting to the above address or bring it to the Town Hall at 1000 Main Street our
office hours are Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Regular Board meetings are
scheduled for the first Monday of each month.)

Name of person making presentation:  John Van Doren and Others

Oraanization, if speaking on behalf of a qroup; Toursim Board & Business Roundirable

Is this a request for Board action?  YES Yes No

Please provide a summary of your comments:

Using a Colorado Tourism Office consultant, Custer County has now made the case and created a marketing plan for

a full season Main St and Custer County economy based on marketing to full-time residents, 2nd home owners, and front range

singles. couples, and families. The success of this plan will be based on the collaboration of Tourism, our business

community {newly formed Business Roundtable, and the Town of Westclifie

What staff member have you spoken to about this? Please summarize your discussion:

Erin. See above.

Contact information:

Name: John Van Doren
Mailing Address: 107 N Adams Blvd

Wastclifie CO 81252
email: senecald11@gmail.com
Daytime Phone: 303 241-2568




fAunyoddo passii e Aiualind s

uonenb3 syl paduey) aney uolleindod SWOH p,¢ 1eUOSESS pue SWi[-1IN4 3UIM0IZ8 Y

e LR e I8 o TS S T M B e

>Eocoom Hombm c_m_\,_
uoseag 11N e 1oj ased ayl




) PR T i ST N W 0T T W e R S g v BT i o 71 ¥ At o R s Y
gt LT 3 L VL o g ERHR L e e S et S
TN P ohe et B e g

’
e T 4

0]0S -
uoneosep Ajlue4 .
sa)dnon .

sAemelac aguey juold .

SI9UMOBWOH T -

SluapiIsay awil-n4g .

sooualpny 1938ie]
UOSeas-1N4




174
0z
oT
L4
14
314
vioz
0z
0z
74
0
6002
L002
S00Z
Yooz
£00T
00T
L00Z
oooe

B b ok md o 3l ah osd el ed

T
I 00 07

e o o e o Rt e A e e b e o v S
e e ey TS e e €

B1B(] SNSUBD) 'S 192IN0g
uonendod Ayunog iaiend

000°e
00Z'c
0ov'e
009'e
0o8'e
000'y
o0zt
oov'y
003'v
008’y
000's
002's
0ov's
009's

AluNWWwo9 pjing pue sessaulsng
|eoo| 1Joddng Ul pa)saJalul I1SO| e

asnoy
3y} JO 1N0 199) :USIA Jo 8sodind e

SJUBAS
ur Bunedionsed pue sessauisng
|eo0| Bulisip :@ousuadxa Jo adA] e
UaIp|Iyd YNpe ‘SeA ualip|iyy e

p|o sieak +GG :oby e

uoneindod SUIMOlI9 1IN0 a3eIaNaT

sjuapIsay awil] N4



ZZ0T 0Z0Z 81L0T 910T PLOT TLOT 0LOT 800 9002 00T T00T 000C

000°L
0ozt
oov'L
0091

o8t
00o'e

00Z'C
B12(] SNSUBND 'S 192N0SG
SSWOH PuUg 7@ S,H1S Wi YIMOID

sAepijoy ay} punoJie
A|le1oadse ‘sjuans anbiun :ul pa)salBjul 1SO|\ e

awoy puodas
J1ay) Jo abejuenpe Bupje] USIA Jo esodind e

Aels puayaspn duyjo adA| e

yeaig Buudg Jano pue sAepijoH 10}
way) yum Buiaaely Ajjenusiod ‘ssp (uaIp|iyy e

plo sieak +GG :oby e

BUOZIIY ‘sexa] ‘@fuey juoa4 :uoieoo| e

sAeis AepnoH Joj Suiuinial Apealy ale Asy|

SJOUMOSBWOH puC



€207® TW0T® 1T0T® 0707 @ 6107 ®
unf X ] 1dy N qa:1 ue[

2q AON] 120 dag Iny ng

| »r

1BDA MAON |
|

sieq] JoqISIp

M9

sewisuyn

p-t:!

U Ainr

_ MOl

adrliaAy Bu0Y Aeq-§

| B puaJy J0USIA 3_.._3.
ssauisng o) uado 10U S1198.1S Ule|A|
INg ‘UoSeas-JJ0 SuluIN1ay ale S1S1NO0] SWOS %@ SIBUMOBWIOH pud

eleq JousiA Alle@ panuaQ auoyd 1890




SaljiAloe
‘SjuUane ‘sjeap Bulbpo
‘Ul pajsalsiul SO

SpMOJO woly Aeme aq
pue ‘Bnjdun ‘pioye ued
Aay) Aemelab Ajlwej e
sjuepA (1ISIA Jo asodind

wayj
ypm Buljgaely ‘usip|iyo
JabunoA ‘sa uaip|iyD

plo sieah Gi-G¢ :aby

Awe4

seousladxa wab

usppIy ‘sellAljoe J00pPINO0

‘sjuane ‘sjeap Buibpon
‘Ul pa)Salalul ]SO\ e

0)gend
pue sgulds

Buixe|aJ oy} Woll
Aneloadsy

pue mau alaymauos
Aemeiab onuewol

B JUBA\ USIA JOo @soding e S >m \Smﬁ@@

Wwiay) Ym
BuijaA.l} JON :UaIp|iyD) e 1ISLINOL

pIo PDUSN2IAN

sieah +GG Gy-0¢ oby e
sa1dnog aguey uol4




sooualladxa wag uspply ‘saillAlloe
Joop1No ‘uonoayal pue ‘uonelolsal
‘suondo 8uI8poT iUl pa1Salalul 1SOIA o

goualadxe 10 Aemelas anlel01sal
e 104J 8U 00T :USIA Jo 8sodund

Wayl Yyum Sunaaell 10N :Uaipliy e
P10 SiedA 0G-GE :08Y .
0]0S

0)1gend pue
sgundg ayy wod) Aneroadsy
sAemelas) 1S1UN0|

PUSY 99NN 98ueY 1u0.d4



slaplnold SUlgpoT]

[ ]

sassaulsng 19911S Ul
sdoyg 990D
sjueinelsay

Ateiqr ayl

OVdOM
9411019 JO UMOL

[ ]

pleog wslnoj

PBRosaionia s o (o S Rl st o

sAepnoH

oy 10J melq SUllAU|

ue 199.11S ule @ew 01 JojgJ
PS1BUIPIO0D € el My




OAg SIBOA
MaN UO MOUS 1ysl suoidg«

1S91U09 21N1dINOS MOUS «

Aa11BA UIBIUNOA 19N SHUIIP % S,NUdW paway| «

a1 ul sAepijoH ayl a1eiqared A sAeld pue salnow paway ] «
sAepnoH ayi 1o} Aeis suolleloosp
‘SUIBIUNOIA 38Ul J0) BWOD A ? S1y3I AeplOH 1S UIB|N «
soulq sel seap| AepljoH awos

Moel] uo siyl deay| 01 siapea] Ajiunwwo)
JO 991WWO0) SULl981S e paau 11,9\




sjuana AeploH snusiH
syead paddeomous Alysal) alnead
uado 1S ale 18yl sossauIsng WsNysIH

uado aie 1eY] Sessauisng IUSNUSIH Aiesaun| 181UIAN 81BYS

sdw oy JawuemiysnusiH

saiyneliseg

guidead Jee) 104 saoe)d 1seg

(Aouagin a1ea10 0} soqiaydas-piw ul sunsod
18pIsu09) sa1el FuIBpo)1Samo) (U0sSeas

nuaw e} e suumesy doys 88400 Aepnoy ay) 810430 ealq pusaam 3uoT

sisuned pesodold soldo] 1usiuoD

smaln Supjeiyiesig

= suoseas suidueyn 19QUIOAON
yealg ned pepuaixj ue folug 120120
away] uauon LU0

lepualed lied



1el1oads
1o Jsuulp AeQ s.2unua)eA e Sullaljo siueinelsay

SToUTEd SUISpoT

uado ale eyl sassauisng ysnusiH

s1uane Aepnoy
ur gunedionied aie 1yl sassauIsng WSNUSIH

19SUNS 8y} Y21e0 01 10ds onuewos 1sow WysnysiH

1eloads 1o 1suulp
Ae( s.,punuslen B 3ullajjo ale 1Bl siueineisal ainjea

fAnigeleae 10 1440 SUIFPO] 91NUIW-1SE) DUBWOI B1YSNUSIH

11el] Moquiey 8yl uo 80ysmaous 01 alaym/moy BNusIH

SMBIA Ja1uim S eIYIRaIg DINJB e

Alessun| J81UIA 8IEUS

uado|)11s a1e 1.yl sassaulsng USnysiH

Ol B1) J8IUIM 31 INOY UM BALIP DIUBDS B FupierydnysiH

s1uane AepioH uBnusIH

Fuixejay ayi ul S| 9A0T

Apeay  padieyoay
‘paysallay 920z o deis

a11sng 3 911snH ou3 edeosy

Alenige4

Aenuer

Jaquiaoaq

Jepualen) JauIAA



pauadoal aABY 1BU) S9SSAUISNA WSNYSIH

Fuiysi4 A4 193985 1N0J |

SIeUled 8UIBPO]

STBULEd FUEPO]

UOCIIBDBA JSUILLNS 810484 ‘U1eaiq B DE]

1Bl MOQUIEY B} UO 81 01 8DUBYD ISl

Mou SuUIgpo) xoog :s1uaAa Sulwoodn

Suluadoal sessaulsng

20UD 100 X8 |9ABI} 010S/1B81191 SSAUTISM UMO INOA axjel
(1onry sesueyly) SulysiiAy) o) awliisag

(s201d 8uI8po1 1semo)) sxead paddeomous Yum ABmess aInulW-1sen

3u|Bessalu ul-a11 pue SMalA SUlXeal ‘INJINeaq syl WsnusiH
AlBJaull| PUSX2aAA J8IUIM MBU 81N1Ea-

fnigeneae 1o sieap SuiBpo) 21nulW-1se) WENUSIH

1e

sealg JIOWWING 340 43geald e avel Aeln
18007 e &1 Buuds dy
Yalel

Sy 3dd Suuds 1enioy ue axel

uajen sulds



SB24-065

Mobile Electronic Devices & Motor Vehicle Driving

Concerning the use of mobile electronic devices when driving a motor vehicle, and, in
connection therewith, making an appropriation.

Bill Summary

Current law prohibits an individual who is under 18 years of age from using a wireless
telephone when driving. Effective January 1, 2025, the act applies the prohibition to an
individual who is 18 years of age or older and updates the term "wireless telephone" to "
mobile electronic device". The act does not apply to an individual with a commercial driver's
license who is operating a commercial vehicle. The following uses of mobile electronic devices
are exempted:

e By an individual contacting a public safety entity;

e By aindividual during an emergency;

e By an employee or contractor of a utility when responding to a utility emergency;

e By an employee or contractor of a city or county acting within the scope of the
employee's or contractor's duties as a code enforcement officer or animal protection
officer; or

e By a first responder.

It is not a violation of the act to use a mobile electronic device in a motor vehicle that is at rest
in a shoulder or lawfully parked.
To cite an individual for a violation of the act, a law enforcement officer must see the
individual use a mobile electronic device in a manner that caused the individual to drive in a
careless and imprudent manner. The penalties for a violation are:

e For a first offense, $75 and 2 license suspension points;

e For a second offense within 24 months, S150 and 3 license suspension points; and

e Forathird or subsequent offense within 24 months, $250 and 4 license suspension

points.

A violation will be dismissed if the individual produces proof of purchase of a hands-free
accessory and affirms, under penalty of perjury, that the defendant has not previously claimed
this option to dismiss.

Current law requires a peace officer who makes a traffic stop to record the demographic
information of the violator, whether a citation has been issued, and the violation cited. The act
clarifies that the peace officer must record whether the act has been violated.

The executive director of the department of transportation, in consultation with the chief of
the Colorado state patrol, is required to create a campaign raising public awareness of the
requirements of the bill and of the dangers of using mobhile electronic devices when driving.

APPROVED by Governor June 5, 2024
PORTIONS EFFECTIVE August 7, 2024
PORTIONS EFFECTIVE January 1, 2025
(Note: This summary applies to this bill as enacted.)



TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE
RESOLUTION# 2-2025

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE, COLORADO
AMENDING THE TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE TOWN HANDBOOK ADDING A DISTRACTED DRIVER
CLAUSE TO SECTION 506, USE OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES.

WHEREAS, the Town has previously adopted the Town of Westcliffe Employee Handbook; and

WHEREAS, the Town finds that amending the Town of Westcliffe Employee Handbook to add
a distracted driver clause is in the best interests and necessary to the function and operation
of the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. Amendment to Section 506 of the Town of Westcliffe Employee Handbook.

Section 506 of the Town Handbook is hereby amended by adding a distracted driver

clause:

All employees using a Town vehicle must comply with Senate Bill 24-065 ‘Mobile
Electronic Devices & Motor Vehicle Driving’. This prohibits drivers from using mobile
electronic devices while driving unless they have a hands-free accessory. The purpose of
this law is to prevent distracted driver accidents.

2. All other parts, paragraphs, and portions of Section 506 remain as written with no

changes or amendments.

READ, PASSED, AND APPROVED THIS 19th day of August, 2025.

BY: TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE

Paul Wenke, Mayor
ATTESTED:

Erin Christie, Town Clerk



Joddng joejuo)

Ow/0%5$

ow/062$
NoYI8YD

® B UM Hiuow / #0L$ Se Mo sy owi /5918

v 89°691LTS Aepo] anq 1e30)
OWwi/G9$

89°001L$ Xe|
05$ BunpueH ®» buiddiys
0% | JUNON 11BM - B2UBWI0}Jad

}IY (£ UB9) BoUBWIOIad YuIlelS

juawied awij-aup

LOW/G9(8 89 006 - Ajold 18207

JuawAed Ayiuop burinoay

Alewwing JapliQ

s11e13Q 801AJ9S
g1 Z - Ajloild 18207
- AJ1101id 18007
89 005 - Ajiold 18207

g9 05 - ALo1id 18207

991A18S

as( ssauisng 103 Jopi0 [l

VSN 'ZGZL8 0 '8)JN21S8M IS UlE M 0001

SS3IPPY 291AIaS

7d13 JeUOIIIPPE pasN <«
S9)es JJeju0) «

‘J8}Nnol e apn)jouj 10U 0p S}y 3dUBWI0)iad4 910U 3SE3|d

el ABP-Q€ 'SIDBIIU0D ON 'SHeam Z-| Ui sdiys

aJiales




TOWN OF WESTCLIFFE
REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON AGENDA
Office of the Town Clerk
P.O. Box 406
Westcliffe, CO. 81252
townclerk@townofwestcliffe.com

)< 719-783-2282
/ Westcliffe Town Board Board of Adjustments

Westcliffe Planning Commission

Here are things you need to know:
= You must contact the Town staff prior to coming to the Board. Quite often the issue can
be resolved by staff action.
= Please plan on attending the meeting. The Board of Trustees will be unable to take
action without a representative in attendance.

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than ten (10) days prior
to the Board meeting to the above address or bring it to the Town Hall at 1000 Main Street our
office hours are Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p m. (Regular Board meetings are
scheduled for the third Tuesday of each month.)

Name of person making presentation: (’ }ﬂaw (2 JA{)W /}g D)Dp(fj—‘ &)Ohﬁ

Oraanization, if speaking on behalf of a group: cpa C Sﬁi Yo S
P

Is this a request for Board action? Yes No [

Please provide a summary of your comments:

P\@&\)@._;T‘ o Sen P WEJ\'}\ B'Oarg @ 9OUJL

Wes e S M rs  roube <) \%\l Yo epurce. rhelr oofpor

Lwr}ﬁ/w Cods /0 ‘H-3 @ Hheir Comﬁm«h\
))elgj 4] ﬂmr)i 5&\/ Cr)mun/' 7L4

What staff member have you spoken to about this? Please summarize your discussion:

C)?r\[\ %

Contact information:

Name: CAQ r)f’ﬁ' ,){é,//] @l/d
Mailing Address: Ay < 52 S50
LeesSclifle (o /252

email: " ol K@ (o OW)J5ﬂCDf?ﬂ
Daytime Phone: 75764 35 ONF/




Town of Westcliffe - Request for Action

Note: Anonymous submittals will not be reviewed and no action will be taken.

Date: 5’/ £ /} A5 Time:
Requester Information:
Name: Charles Jﬁj
Address: 3 /& S, S 1 reed
Town Resident: 24 ves [J No
Phone Number 757 635 72 4] Email. Choc K @ jaapw Cl.j.éa/l'\
Location of Request/Issue (/€4 Mpornvtasvy Vel e,\f 50; CHJRE C )ub

Aredd.
Nature of Request Issue:
Drainage Issues Street Cleaning
Insect/Rodent Issues Street Lighting
Parks/Trails Grass/Weed
Town Personnel Pot Holes/Paving
Sidewalk Trash/Rubbish
Signage in Town Building/Structure
Snow Removal X Zoning/Code / @ - Li d-,,?

NOTE: ISSUES INVOLVING NON-TOWN MATTERS SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO
THE AGENCY THAT HANDLES THE ISSUE. THE TOWN DOES NOT ENFORCE
VIOLATIONS OF THE LAW, UTILITY ISSUES, WATER/SEWER, ELECTRICAL,
INTERNET AND BROADBAND ISSUES.

Descrlbethmssugr\g T{.’Hﬂ Z/J’q%}) Qr’t’;« M@T

_Signature: (&£ —
. _,/
NOTE: Pu ant to C.R.S 24-72-203 Public Records are open to inspection.

Office Use Only:
Action Required
Action ‘l'aken

Date of Action: By (print name)
Signed:

As per the Town Policy adopted November, 3, 2015



owmdt 2SN
WESTCLIFFE

Town of Westcliffe - Request for Action

Note: Anonymous submittals will not be reviewed and no action will be taken.

Date: 5'/! 7,/ )\{ Time:

Requester Information:

Name: C}'\ ;:u")e& jﬂ

%3
Address: 3 /8 S, 5 2S5 reed

Town Resident: 24 ves [ No

Phone Number 75 7 635 724/ Email: Chyc K @ taqﬂb!)d_‘i Lom

Location of Request/lssue 1ot M oenTaia )/ o) e%ga_iﬂﬂ_ﬂé_ﬁiﬁ)‘{

Nature of Request Issue;
Drainage Issues Street Cleaning
Insect/Rodent Issues Street Lighting
Parks/Trails Grass/Weed
Town Personnel Pot Holes/Paving
Sidewalk Trash/Rubbish
Signage in Town Building/Structure
Snow Removal }4 Zoning/Code

NOTE: ISSUES INVOLVING NON-TOWN MATTERS SHCULD BE DIRECTED TO
THE AGENCY THAT HANDLES THE ISSUE. THE TOWN DOES NOT ENFORCE
VIOLATIONS OF THE LAW, UTILITY ISSUES, WATER/SEWER, ELECTRICAL,
INTERNET AND BROADBAND ISSUES.

Descr!bethelssue Fhe (et Me i 2 )l S”JJ/L b Crom/s e

Has been Ba_ I ghts S ualy Thoreds

VEVY'R W Aﬂur.“mmm B AT S s
S 3

Signature:

/ ”i/ _/,, - iD&;e 8 y?/ ié

NOTE: Pursi ant 0 C.R.S 24-72-203 Public Records are open to inspection.
Office Use Only:

Action Required

Action l'aken

Date of Action: By (print name)

Signed:

As per the Town Policy adopted November, 3, 2015



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

Summary of Findings

e The Rodeo Ground Light System installed in 2023 creates substantial glare and horizontal

light trespass impacting the Shadow Ridge residential development as well as the
Smokey Jack Observatory (SJ0). This lighting system violates the Westcliffe Lighting
Ordinance and is inconsistent with the stated intent of this ordinance to prevent glare
and light trespass.
Glare and horizontal light trespass from the Rodeo Ground Light System:

o extends at least 2,000 feet beyond the boundaries of the Stampede Rodeo.

o prevents the SJO from holding public events on the nights of the rodeo.
The Football Field Light System at Henrich Field uses a different design that:

o attenuates illuminance by more than 98% only 165 feet from the sidelines and

the endzones of the football field.

o does not interfere with public events at the SJO.
A recent large, prospective study demonstrated that exposure to artificial light at night is
associated with a clinically and statistically significant increase in risk for Type 2 Diabetes
Mellitus (T2DM), leading the authors to conclude “avoidance of light at night could be a
simple and cost-effective recommendation that mitigates risk of diabetes, even in those
with high genetic risk.”

Recommendations

If the Board of Trustees (BOT) issues A Special Use Permit to illuminate the Rodeo
Ground Light System, it should be limited to the three nights of the ranch and
professional rodeo in July of each year.

The BOT should prohibit the Saddle Club from illuminating the Rodeo Ground Light
System on nights when public events are scheduled at the 5JO.

A qualified, independent lighting engineer should inspect the Rodeo Ground Light
System and recommend modifications to improve glare and horizontal light trespass
from this system. The Saddle Club should be required to cooperate with this inspection.
No Special Use Permits, beyond the three nights of the rodeo, should be issued by the
BOT until glare and horizontal light trespass have been mitigated at least to the standard
achieved by the Football Field Light System.

The BOT should take enforcement action if the Saddle Club illuminates its lighting system
when not permitted by a Special Use Permit.

1 I Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

Purpose

This report compares the design and performance of sports lighting systems installed at the
Stampede Rodeo Grounds (i.e., “Rodeo Ground Light System”) and at Henrich Field (i.e.,
“Football Field Light System”). Glare and horizontal light trespass by these two lighting systems
are discussed.

Methods

Discussion of the design of the Rodeo Ground Light System and the Football Field Light System
is based on photographs obtained in daylight and engineering diagrams obtained from the
designers of each system.

Engineering diagrams for the Rodeo Ground Lights were obtained from Mr. Jake Burgess, an
employee of Slatercom Lighting Solutions of Salem, Oregon. Slatercom designed the Rodeo
Ground Light System and provided the hardware for this system. These engineering drawings
quantify illuminance (foot-candles) of the competition area of the Stampede Rodeo Grounds,
but do not quantify horizontal light trespass adjacent to the competition area.

Engineering drawings for the Football Field Light System were obtained from Ms. Marcelina
Marvelli, an employee of MUSCO Lighting. MUSCO designed the Football Field Light System,
provided the hardware, and installed the system. The engineering drawings for the Football
Field Lighting System quantify illuminance (foot-candles) of the competition area of the football
field and quantify horizontal light trespass adjacent to the competition area.

Horizontal light trespass of the Rodeo Ground Lights and the Football Field Lights was
characterized with photographs taken at night when each lighting system was illuminated for a
sporting event. Since the engineering diagrams for the Rodeo Ground Lights do not guantify
horizontal light trespass, additional photographs were taken when the Rodeo Ground Lights
were turned off to further characterize glare and horizontal light trespass originating from this
system. These photographs were taken at similar times of the evening, using similar locations
and camera angles, and similar photographic settings (e.g., f-stop, exposure duration) as were
used for the images taken when the Rodeo Ground Lights were illuminated.

Photographs taken while the Rodeo Ground Lights were illuminated were obtained at two
locations in the Shadow Ridge development northeast of the Stampede Rodeo Grounds.
Additional photographs were taken near the Smokey Jack Observatory located in Bluff Park,
southwest of the Stampede Rodeo Grounds. As will be shown, illumination of the Rodeo
Ground Light System resulted in substantial glare and horizontal light trespass into both the
Shadow Ridge development and the area of the Smokey Jack Observatory.

2 I Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

Night time photographs, taken while the Football Field Light System was illuminated, were taken
at the Custer County Football Stadium (i.e., Henrich Field) to assess light trespass by this system.
Consistent with the results of quantitative analysis of horizontal light trespass, light from the
Football Field Light System was primarily restricted to the competition area of the football field.

Linear distance between the photographic sites and the center of the Stampede Rodeo Ground
was estimated using the ruler function in Google Earth. Change in elevation between the center
of the Stampeded Rodeo Grounds and photographic sites was estimated with the elevation

meter in Google Earth.

Characteristics of the Rodeo Ground Light System
Designed by Slatercom Lighting Solutions

The Rodeo Ground Light System was installed in July of 2023, immediately prior to the
Stampede Rodeo held in 2023.

The design of the Rodeo Ground Light System is illustrated in the next two images:

The Rodeo Ground Light System consists of 24 LED fixtures (4H550W-L-50-BR-04-5-Y) that are
mounted at the top of seven 55-foot-tall light poles (image on left). Twenty-three of these

3|Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

fixtures have a nominal beam angle of 40-degrees to the ground and one has a nominal beam
angle of 30-degrees angle to the ground. Slatercom’s engineering report indicates that the
beam angle may have been adjusted during installation. Each fixture is equipped with a small
visor (image on right). The 24 installed 4H550W-L-50-BR-04-5-Y fixtures deliver a total of
1,927,200 lumens of light energy.

As shown in the image above, illuminance delivered to the competition area of the rodeo
grounds averages 28.96 foot-candles, with minimum and maximum illuminance ranging from
23.7 to 39.7 foot-candles. Slatercom’s engineering drawings do not estimate horizontal light
trespass in the area immediately adjacent to the competition area. Since horizontal light
trespass was not assessed by Slatercom in the engineering diagrams, the visual impact of
horizontal light trespass from the Rodeo Ground Light System was characterized
photographically as described below.

Glare and Light Trespass from the Rodeo Ground Light
System in Shadow Ridge and at the Smokey Jack
Observatory

The next two photographs document substantial glare and horizontal light trespass from the
Rodeo Ground Light System in Granite Court located in Shadow Ridge, near the southwest
boundary of this housing development.

=
e
o
oG
m



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

The photograph on the left was taken from Granite Court when the Rodeo Ground Light System
was illuminated during the Stampede Rodeo on the night of July 18, 2025. There is obvious
glare from the Rodeo Ground Light System with horizontal light trespass that illuminates the
ground and the pavement of Granite Court in the foreground while casting a long shadow onto
the pavement from a fire hydrant (fire hydrant identified with a red ellipse). The photograph on
the right was taken from a similar position in Granite Court on the night of July 20, 2025, when
the Rodeo Ground Light System was turned off. The glare in the picture on the right is from a
light on the Saddle Club structure that was illuminated on the night this photograph was taken.
The position of the fire hydrant in the photograph on the right is identified with a red ellipse.
The image taken on July 20 shows less glare, less horizontal light trespass, and no shadow cast
from the fire hydrant.

These photographs were taken approximately 1,150 feet from the center of the Stampede
Rodeo Grounds. The approximate elevation of this photographic site (7,892 feet) is comparable
to the approximate elevation of the Stampede Rodeo Grounds (7,884 feet).

5|Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

Additional photographs (not shown), taken near the northeast boundary of Shadow Ridge
approximately 3,000 feet from the center of the Stampede Rodeo Grounds, document
considerable glare from the Rodeo Ground Lighting System. The approximate elevation of this
photographic site (7,942 feet) is 58 feet higher in elevation than the Stampede Rodeo Grounds
(7,884 feet).

The next two photographs were taken from the Spectator’s Amphitheater at the Smokey Jack

Observatory in Bluff Park.

The photograph on the left was taken when the Rodeo Ground Light System was illuminated
during the Stampede Rodeo on the night of July 18, 2025. There is obvious glare from the
Rodeo Ground Light System with horizontal light trespass that illuminates the ground, casting
shadows from the tree trunks in the background. The photograph on the right was taken from
a similar position on the night of August 6, 2025, when the Rodeo Ground Light System was
turned off. The image taken on August 6 shows less glare, less horizontal light trespass, and no
shadows cast from the tree trunks.

These photographs were taken approximately 2,300 feet from the center of the Stampede
Rodeo Grounds. This photographic site (elevation 7,849 feet) is approximately 35 feet lower in
elevation than the Stampede Rodeo Grounds (elevation 7,884 feet).

6|Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

In summary, the Rodeo Ground Light System creates substantial glare and horizontal light
trespass that extends at least 2,000 feet beyond the property lines of the Stampede Rodeo
Grounds. This is a violation of the Westcliffe Lighting Ordinance and is inconsistent with the
stated intent of this ordinance.

Impact of the Rodeo Light System on the Smokey Jack
Observatory

The new Rodeo Light System began operation during the Stampede Rodeo in July of 2023. On
July 15, 2023, this lighting system was illuminated for the rodeo when a large group was being
hosted at the Smokey Jack Observatory (SJO). That night it became apparent that public
observing sessions could not be held at the SJO when the Rodeo Light System is illuminated due
to glare, horizontal light trespass, and degradation of the night sky. Since July 15, 2023, Dark
Skies has closed the SJO to the public on nights when the Rodeo Light System is illuminated for
the rodeo.

Characteristics of the Football Field Light System Designed
by MUSCO Lighting

The Football Lighting System was installed during the spring of 2021. As described at their
corporate website (https://www.musco.com), MUSCO has a patented sports lighting system
(TLC) that is designed to prevent glare and horizontal light trespass:

° ™
Total Light Control Technology
For us, emitting light is just the first step. For others, it's the only step. That's the difference.

LED is simply the newest tool for addressing the same issues that have endured over decades—how to put more light on your field,
spill less around it, and reduce energy consumption and operating costs. Qur Total Light Control - TLC for LED™ system achieves a

level of precision never before possible.

From the Light Source to the Field

We create controlled light, not floodlights. The patented, customizable optics of our TLC for LED® system can control the intense,
“rifle shot” of LED light like no other lighting solution. We put a higher percentage of light precisely where you want it—on the field.
And players can track the flight of the ball like never before.

Preserving the Night Sky

With TLC for LED® we're able to carve out the area to be lighted with pinpoint precision, dramatically cutting off any impact on the
surrounding area. No more worrying about glare or spill impacting the area around your field. And it opens up new opportunities for

where fields can be located within a community.

7|Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

MUSCO Lighting has remediated sports lighting systems that were plagued by glare and
horizontal light trespass. MUSCO recently remediated a sports lighting systems installed by a
different company at the University of Colorado-Colorado Springs. The following YouTube video
documents the successful remediation of glare and horizontal light trespass based on testimony
by residents who live adjacent to this projectin Colorado Springs:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2fnggMwwBYM

The design of the Football Field Light System is illustrated in the next two images:

The Football Field Light System consists of 16 LED fixtures (TLC-LED-1200) that are mounted at
the top of four 70-foot-tall light poles (image on left). The TLC-LED-1200 fixture consists of an
LED lighting element that is recessed within a comprehensive metal shield that directs the light
beam in a vertical direction toward the competition area to restrict horizontal trespass of light
(image on the right). The 16 TLC-LED-1200 fixtures installed in the Football Field Light System
deliver a total of 2,176,000 lumens of light energy. Marcelina Marvelli, of MUSCO Lighting,
confirmed that the TLC-LED-1200 fixtures for the Football Field Light System are installed with a
beam angle that is 90-degrees to the ground.

Four additional LED fixtures (TLC-BT-575) are attached to the four light poles at a height of 15
feet above the ground. These light fixtures are directed upward to permit players on the field to
track the flight of the football. The 4 installed TLC-BT-575 fixtures deliver a total of 208,000
lumens of light energy.

8|Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

llluminance delivered to the competition area of the football field averages 20 foot-candles,
with minimum and maximum illuminance ranging from 15 to 25 foot-candles (image on the
left). Illuminance immediately adjacent to the competition area averages 0.306 foot-candles,
with minimum and maximum illuminance ranging from 0.12 to 0.74 foot-candles (estimated at 3
feet above grade level, approximately 165 feet from the sidelines and the endzones of the
competition area). The average illuminance of the competition area of the football field is more
than 65 times the average illuminance approximately 165 from the sidelines where illuminance

is only 1.5% that of the competition area.

Visual performance of the Football Field Light System is depicted in the image shown above.
While the football field is well-illuminated, the area a short distance beyond the sideline and
the endzone and the faces of spectators sitting in the stadium remain in the shadows. This
image demonstrates control of horizontal light trespass by the TLC Light System installed by
MUSCO Lighting, consistent with the more than 98% attenuation of illuminance only 165 feet
from the competition area as documented in the engineering diagrams.

9| Pag
Pag

o



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

lllumination of the Football Field Light System does not interfere with public observing sessions
at the SJO.

Comparison of the Rodeo Ground Light System to the
Football Field Light System

The Rodeo Ground Light System and the Football Field Light System differ in glare and horizontal
light trespass. This difference may result from critical differences in the design of these two
sports lighting systems.

Shielding and beam angle of the light fixtures used for the Football Field Light System (left
image) and the Rodeo Ground Light System (right image) are illustrated below:

As shown in the image on the left, the light fixtures used in the Rodeo Ground Light System are
equipped with a small visor at the top. The light beam is projected forward at a nominal angle

of 40° to the ground in a configuration that resembles the headlights of an automohile. As was
documented in prior photographs, this configuration results in substantial glare and horizontal

light trespass in both Shadow Ridge and at the Smokey Jack Observatory.

As shown in the picture on the right, the light fixtures used in the Football Field Light System are
recessed inside of a metal shield that projects the light beam downward at an angle of 90-

10| Page



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

degrees to the ground. This configuration mitigates horizontal light trespass as demonstrated in
a prior photograph and in the formal analysis of horizontal light trespass by MUSCO Lighting.

The taller height of the light poles used in the Football Field installation (70 feet) may have
facilitated a beam angle of 90-degrees to the ground. The shorter height of the light poles used
in the Rodeo Ground installation (55 feet) may have necessitated a smaller beam angle of 40-
degrees to the ground. Vertical projection of the light beam and comprehensive shielding of the
beam in the Football Field Light System would be expected to provide better control of glare
and horizontal light trespass.

An inspection by a qualified, independent lighting engineer could elucidate which design
features are contributing to the glare and horizontal light trespass seen with the Rodeo Ground
Light System and identify modifications that could remediate this system.

Health Consequences of Artificial Light at Night

The geographic distribution of exposure to artificial light at night, assessed by satellite-based
surveys of light pollution, is correlated with geographic distribution of incidence and prevalence
of type 2 diabetes mellitus (T2DM) in people. However, satellite surveys of light pollution
cannot correlate light pollution with T2DM at the level of individual persons.

A recently published study in The Lancet correlated exposure to artificial light at night with new
onset of T2DM in a large, prospective study in the United Kingdom involving more than 84,000
non-diabetic participants. Participants were genotyped to assess genetic risk for developing
T2DM at baseline and wore a device to measure exposure to artificial light at night for one week
prior to entering the study. After entry to the study, participants were followed for an average
of 7.9 years and monitored for newly diagnosed T2DM.

The frequency of newly diagnosed T2DM was analyzed in four groups of individuals based on
the severity of exposure to artificial light at night. The risk for newly diagnosed T2DM in the
three groups of participants with the highest level of exposure (50-70", 70-90"", and 90-100%"
Percentile) was compare to the fourth group with lower levels of exposure to artificial light at
night (0-50t" Percentile, referred to as the “Dark Night Group”).

Risk for newly diagnosed T2DM was highly correlated with severity of exposure to artificial light
at night; this correlation was highly statistically significant (P < 0.001 for comparison of the
“Dark Night Group” to each of the higher artificial light exposure groups) in an analysis adjusted
for multiple potential confounders. The relative risk for onset of T2DM in the higher artificial
light exposure groups, compared to the “Dark Night Group,” increased in a dose-related manner
as shown in the table below:

11 I Pa g e



Design and Performance of Two Sports Lighting Systems in Custer County 11-Aug-25
Robert Wolf

Higher Night Time Exposure to Light Group | Increase in Risk of T2DM Relative to “Dark Night Group”
50-70™" Percentile 28-33%
70-90™ Percentile 39-44%
90-100" Percentile 53-67%

Range for increase in risk is based on three different Cox Regression Models with stepwise adjustment for multiple potential risk factors.

The correlation of risk for T2DM with night time exposure to artificial light remained significant
after adjustment for additional potential confounders (including competing risk for death, body
mass index, hypertension, and other risk factors for T2DM) and was robust after exclusion of
participants with pre-diabetes at baseline. Genotype and exposure to artificial light at night
were independent risk factors for development of T2DM. The risk attributable to exposure to
artificial light at night was additive to the risk associated with genetic risk factors. The
magnitude of the effect the highest exposure group (90-100'" percentile) was comparable to the
increase in risk between people with low and moderate genetic risk.

Conclusion of the Authors:

“Avoidance of light at night could be a simple and cost-effective recommendation that mitigates
risk of diabetes, even in those with high genetic risk.”

Based on the results of this study and other clinical and experimental studies, exposure to
artificial light at night may be an important, but modifiable risk factor for T2DM. T2DM is one of
the most important public health problems in the United States; it often robs patients of quality
of life and can result in permanent disability and premature death. Modifiable risk factors for
T2DM, including exposure to artificial light at night, should be minimized whenever possible.

12| Pa



